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OLICE SAY ATTACK BEST FORM OF DEFENCE

i The trial of the Mangrove Nine, seven black brothers and two sigters,
i opened at the Old Bailey, in London. on Tuesday the 5th Octe 1971,

These nine hlack people face very serious charges of INCITEMENT

| TO RIOT , AFFRAY, and ASSAULTING POLICE, The charges arise

4 oul of o demonstration of black pevple against the vietimisation of the

Mangrove restaurant in Notling Hill Gate by the police and police

“bratality against the black people of the area. On this demonstration, on

August the Hth 1970, the gpirit and will of black people to resist became

i very clear, The police, boih uniformed and plainclothes, had taken °

§ unprecedented measures to control and discredit it, When the demonstiration §
reached Portnali Road and the police were at full strengih, they launched

an altack on the demonsirators, caused an affray , and arrested seventeen

j brothers and sisters . Others were arrested at various times in the year
y

following (he incident.The case of the Mangrove Nine, the refusal of the

8 court to allow them Lo be tried by black jurors, the evident bias of the

§ judge in the conduct of the case in general shows us very clearly how the

Bt police and the legal sysiem arve used to repress black people, their opinions

and their struggle in this country. Move than that, il reveals to us our

y position in thig society.
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= y October & Tuesday 19th Cctober :
Monday 11tk Octo B enpthy infroductio

Before the prosecution began to€ :
Judee - Edward Clarke denied sister Althea Jones ,_.c»ic
N ‘ their right to

both of whom are defending themselves e
the dock, even though this is accepted [egalEDIoCECERan o . ) e
o e defendants. cramped in the dock, for the jury and

i1l i ifi he nine :
Prosecutor Hill identified the : 5 SO % g
beean his opening statement by saying that in Britain everyone had the ng‘}t -0 E’Jteace
eg ¢ P 43 ) o jurv ool that the police weren 1 agalnst thig

ful protest . Fe attempted to make _ , e
lcin(? of protest but had to contain ""people who tried to use-the dlsﬁogfe{g 0'.1 ire
people for their own a dvantage . At no point did he explain how individuals could

e ; itv to b - injustice, but tried as best
take advantage of the reaction of a community 0 bhlatant inj 5

e could, to implv that the demonstration was not against this er‘uta.lvlty, but 1S;gamst
the police and in some mysterious way aghinst whites. The first witness called by

the prosecution was a press phoographer who had suppli(fd the police Wit:l pho.ttzs
of the demonstration - On cross-examination e gaid that he handed CLVGT_&‘Q pictures
exhibited in court to the police two to hree months after the dem,onSLr?twn-_ S
Stockwell of the CID told the court that he had seen them iwo to three VEEXKS after
“he event . The witness who works for the MIRROR said that as far as he knew there
were no reporters from his paper present and yet the IRROR put out a front page
article on the gurroundings of the demo . Thig clearly reveals that the MIRROR works
hand in glove with the police against the people and is quite content to run stories
without first hand information- '
The next witness. Superintendent Donelly . claimed that he was directly responsible
for the control and behaviour of his policemen ou the demonstration He said he d
authoriged the use of an unidentifiable observation van which contained, amon g others,
the notorious PC Pulley of Notting Till police . His testiony was used by the pros-
e cnution to try and prove that Radford Howe had incit ed the demonstrators to riot by
using the words '"look there are the pigs"
RBrother Radford: Zow long did I speak for?
Donelly: About five to six minutes
Bro Radford: Zow did,I open my 3peech?
Donelly: You saijd 'look at the pies"
Pro Radford: I would sugges: to you that I started by saying "Erothers and Sigters'
At this point o hig notehook Donelly said he had heard brother Radford say
nTook at the pigs we complain to the police about the police, we have complained to the
council about the council, we have complained to parliament about parliament™
Rrother Radford then sugoested to the policeman that it was the police who had added
"Look there are the pigg'to his speech e pointed out that such a datement could not
lead into what he had actually said in his speech :
RBro Radford'So you heard the whole of my five minie speechkut all you can remember
is half 2 minute? Did I no’ go on to say that the Action Commitiee in Defence of the . T
Miangrove had organised the demonstration and where we were going? 'Surely a man
of your experience would take more nofe of such a demonstration , particularly in
the area which you are in charge of o
RBrother Radford forced the superintendent to reveal that he had doubts and miagivings
about the demo before it began e managed to read, in cross examination, his
demonstration speech which showed the court that the demo was concerned in a rational,
political manner with injustice and not with rabble rousing . Sister Althea, next to
question Donelly. showed the court that Donelly’s satements were made with 'the same
prejudiced "doubts and misgivings" - She tried to show the court the nature of this
prejudice by asking Donelly what his definition of Black Power was
Donelly: T am not in any position to angwer.I don ¢ know maybe its connected with
some left wing movement
Sister Althea egtablished that agin Donelly could reme~her only half a minute of her
own ten minute speech . She asked him if he had given the police the order to draw
truncheons and he replied "I gave no order to draw fruncheons ,but it was every man -
for himself Questioned by Ian MacDonald, counsel for sister Barbara Becse, the
superintendent revealed that he had confused the identity of Sister Barbara and another
Miss A whao was at the demo and dregsed in a similar faghion
Jan MacBonald: Do you know that a letter was sent by the police o the Home Office
informing them about the demonstration?
Donelly: No

a to the charges and to the ‘cage, . .
ointe and brother Radford Howd,
have an assistant with them in




The question >f dentities was raised several J
Of wbSisa o il 3 ral times in the - : :
Donelly . Donelly claimed at one : 3 in the cross examination of

pint that defe 1 :

carrying the panther flag throught the demons’crzr:‘(c:]‘jJL :rtl kg‘gz.};izlljitpeivﬂa‘?;gzgi: 3;3 :’:: R
fact that none of the pi?otographg which the prosecution submitted showvno gign of
brotl.ler Rupert carrying the flag. The part that PC Pulley played in the demonstration
and investigation came in for serious questioning by defendants and their counsel,
Donelly., w_ho had said earlier that he had delegated Pulley to the observation van‘and
given him instructions not to interfere or "get involved!'!, was asked by barrister
Woodley fQJ_F‘ Boyce whether he knew about the comylainis ,bf black people against
Pulley. Donelly said he was aware of them and 'tha‘t he had chosen Puilzay because

nof his experience in the area  While being questioned by brother Radford , Donelly
admitted that after the demonstration he had sent fifty policemen to the Mang,rove to
arrest brother Rupert Boyce Donelly claimed that he went himself to the Mangrove
a_nd saw brother Radford playing an active part in the disturbance there. '

Bro. Radford: So as far ag you know I was arrested: at the Mangrove and the next time
you saw me was at the station?

Donelly: Yes.

Bro. Radford: Did you know officer, that ten minutes after you saw me at the Mangrove
I was walking down Powis Square ? Did you also know that T was arrested thefe by

PC PULLEY and two others who were driving around in a i'ia% car? :

V/ednesday 13th October

The cross examination of Superintendent Donelly contirued. Counsel for sister
,Barbara established that as far as Denelly knew there were ro plairclothes policemen

on the demonstration. : :

Ian Maclonald: If demonstrators were being tripped up by white people not in uniform,
and having placards snatched out of their hands , you would say that this was being done by
people other than police officers?

Donelly: Yes ' ‘

Later on the same day, Stockwell of the CID told the court that apart from himself , there
were approximately twelve plainclothes men from the CID on the demonstration. He
emphasisad that they had been posted there by Scotland Yard, that they were familiar

with the officers on the march and knew that Donelly was in overail charge.

Barrister Croft, acting for brother Frank Critchlow, asked Ponelly if he recognised

2 certain brother in a photograph. Donelly readily replied that it was Frank Critchlow.
Croft i avited the witness to s{ep out of the witness hox and suggested to him that the
person he had identified ag Critchlow was someonc who was sitting in the public gallery-
T/hen shown the brother in question, Donelly admitted that it codld have been him in

the phtograph. ¥

Inspector Stockwell of the CID appeared next for the prosecution. The prosecution took
him through the police:rigmai‘ole of saying that the march was peaceful until the
‘troulemakers' incited the crowd . He said he was there as the crime squad in plain clothes
to identify iroublemakers" and give information to uniformed police regarding arrests.
He spelt out in some detail the elaborate preparations which the police had made saying
that apart from the plainclothesmeri marching with the demonstrators, others were in
private cars skirting the route of the march. Under guestionirg, he also told the court
‘that the police were notified of another meeting in the area but chose to concentrate on
‘this particular ‘ne that afternoon.

In his statement to the magistrate on the 9th of Getcber, at the preliminary hearing,

last year, Stockwell had gaid that defendants Rhodan Gozdon and Rothwell Xentish

had evaded arrest. Counsel for brother Rothwell asked him what he -meant by the word

‘evaded . 5
Stockwell: Well, he didn t try to run away or leave the country or anything like that. .
Counsel: Then when you say he evaded arrest, all you mean is that he wasn't arrested that
day ?

Stockwell: The information was not ready on that day.

Counscl: Did you try to find out where he lived?

Stockwell: No

Counsel: Did you take a
Stockwell: No _
Coungel: It would follow the
mation was collected.
Stockwell: Yes

ny precautions to prevent them from leaving the country

n that they could have left the country by the time the infdr-




Counsel: You were at the police station that evenmg when a lot. of peaple , lawyers,
solicitors, friends etc. came to make cnqmmcs D1d you know that Rhodan went to the
gtation that evening and made enqun-leq about some of the peoplc who were arrcsted?
Stockwell made no reply.

Counsel: Then why did you use the word "evado" 1n thig statement ?

Stockwell: The document was. not prepared by me, thcy ]ust aren't, I just accepted that

it was correct. ;

Counsel: Did you just sign the outenent thcn

At this point the judge interrupted the quostmmng and pointed out to the jury that when an
officer signs a statement , it is not ncccssamly his porsonzﬂ statement, but one which

he believes to be correct to the best of his knowledgh” In this way it was established that
either the statement was concocted ata higher lcvcl or that individual policemen such ag
PC Fulley could make allegations which his superiors would support without. reference to
the truth. . Py ,

Brother Godfrey Millet, who was arrested nearly one year after the demonstration was
arrested ag Roy Caboo, a name he had never heard before. Acting for his defence,
barrister Woodley attempted to prove that if Millet had been arrested as Caboo and charged
under that name, then Millet himself had no charges to answer. Barriotér Woodley, in his

questi oning, showed that while Stockwell had stated at the magistrates court that "Roy

Caboo: was of no fixed address'’, he stated on Wehe esday that he had not tried to find Caboo
after the demonstration and had not checked on his record. Woodley suggested to the |
policeman that he knew someone called Roy Caboo other than Godfrey Millett. Brother
Padford Howe, displaying the unity and coilecriva:gpirit of the Mangrove Nine, took up

the point in his. cross examination.

Bro Radford- Did ypu know, officer, that Roy Caboo was one of the main organisers of that
demonstration?

Stoclwell:: No ,

Bro Radford- Did you imow that dotec*lve Inspocu)r Hovar‘h went to Roy Caboo's address
to arrest him ?

Stockwell:T know nothing about that

. BroRadford: T am suggesting to you , officer, that i-r Roy Caboo does exiat ag an organiser

of thatidemonstration. as a director of the route.. - S O NI e B

+ Alive to. Bro Radford's questioning and the point he was trying to make, the pubhc gallery and

the court in gaﬂeral was filled with 2 murmur of solidarity.

: Thursdav 14th October

Questloned by sister Althea, Stockwell- said that he had not seen anyone committing an
arrestabidoffence, that he had left the demonstration at the crucial point. The defence
also estabhshed that his only recollection of sister Barabara Beese was of her afro

‘hairstyle. He admit ued in real racist cliche, that all girls with afro styles looked more or

less the same to him. When barrister Tan Macdonald tried to show the caurt that the

. Black People s News Service was not in any sense a fanatical extremist paper but a means

- of passing information to the black communities, information which the sditalled:s
: egtablished newspapers distorted or denied, the prosecutor objected, saying that the

.~ document couldn’t enter cross examination regardless of its relevance. The ]udge

supported him and ruled that this newspaper for the black by the black was not
admissable in a trial of black people in an English court. MacDonald reminded the court

. at this pomt that he only introduced the paper because the prosecution itself had referred to

it in his opening statement as a piece of "racist and inflammatory" ht_emture..

Fnd_ax 15th. October

The progecution s next witness was PC Phxlhps a policeman who clalmod that he had been
hit by a brick at the demonstration and had taken two days off work as a result of injuries.
On cross examma’uon, gigter Althea established that after he had bee n hit as he cla1med
he got up, 'looked around, saw no-one' and ran to catch up with the demonstrators who
had by then moved into Malban Rd. He also claimed that he escorted the march for a

while and then helped to form a second cordon of police. When asked abput how he got the
injuries he saidtfivit when the melee started he ran towards the demonstrators because hel
felt that attack was the best form of deZence!'. Althea asked him if he had been attacked
personally and he said he had not. .

..Sister Althea: So you started defending yourself before you were attacked?

PC Phillips: No, the bricks were in the air
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These nine black pes
TO RIQT , AFFRAY, and ASSAULTING PQL ;
out of a demonsiration of black people againgt the viciimisa tion of .the
Mangrove restaurant in Notting Hill Gate hy the police and police
brutality against the biack peopie of the aren. On this demonsivation. on

5. The cha;

August the 5th 1870, ther apirit and will of black people o resist became
very clear. The police, both uniformed and plainclothez, had taken

LT

onprecedenied measures (o control and diseredit it. When the demonstiratio
rezched Porvinail Road and the police were at full strength, they ¥unched _
an attack on the demonstrators, caused an affray , and arrested. seventeen.
g} brothers and sisters . Others were arrested at various times in the vear

"}j following the incident.The casze of the Mangrove Nine, the refusal of the

court fo aliow them to be {ried by black jurors. the avident bias ¢f the

2! judze in the conduct of the cage in general shows us very clearly how the §
; police and the legal system are usad to repress black people. their opiniops
and their struggle in this couniry. More than that, it reveals to us our o
position in {his
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MONDAY 28 TH OCTOBER £ DI AL 5 N
As the trial began for the week, the Judge, Edward‘ (zlark 51«1:“« ﬂrlt:f Jl-ll}{) OLUtwaczgus\, t.he
defence wanted to raise the question of the police photogrz: «.(ii '.11. z\trc, B:‘o?oarap S which
g i 3 Jd to identify Godirey Millett tnder the name of
had appeared in the Police Gazette, use : ST | et !
i . rogecution witnessas ecrlier. The defence gaiq
Roy Caboo, had been mentioned by the prosecuticr 5 s e ;
tbuyt thev would like to cross-examine the police photographer it indeed the photographs wer
o2 4 , Y S T e s

not taken by the man from the Mirror whom the prosecution rad ﬁlx}vddy put on the stang,

& v 3l f Nt (i 2
Prosecutor Hill informed the court that the person who had admi. “he phoic graphs had

Eeen sent to the demonstration specifically to take photoe of i~ .,uv1.dfmls 2ad e.'.'eﬂnts on
e position as an informer

the march He claimed that the photographer was in the 3an.e [ o
and so couldn't be called as his identity would be discios.cc.. ua:x& 2ne Counsel James
Goudie, acting for defendant Brother Innis, argucd tha.t if t;he c.?f.ence wa.ntrc';d to' Sl_lmmons
the photographer the prosecution would be obliged fo g.ve them his names lke insistence
of the defence on this point had a specific reason , which hecomes ciear or Friday when
the photographer is brought to take the stand. Bringing him to _cour‘f. mafde very clear

the methods the police use to keep track of and control political ~ction in this country,

it also brought to the stand a witness who could teil the pecple abf)ut t’m.e attitude of the
_police to the demonstration of August 9th 1970z~ - hut mowe of that in I'riday's
report.

The statement of PC Beckerson who has died sirce the demo wez thea vead to the court.
Inspector Aldritt , a sexior officer on the coach which follow~.d the ¢~monstration, was
then called. He agreed with defenee counsel that ali the pelicemen o:. the narch had drawn
their truncheons at some time -- I saw many officers draw trunchcons. On cross
examining him, Brother Radford Howe asked him how much ke remembered of the speech
that Bro Radford had made at the beginning of the march. A iz could remember of this
speech, which other witnesses for the prosecution had said lasied from five fo ten
minutes, was "Thesc are the pigs, we've got to got rid of the pigs'. Earlier, he had
told Bro Radford that he could remember nothing aboui him and had taken notes to
refresh his memory. Bro Radford asked to see his notes and poiated out that there was
no note made at the time that he had said ' look there are the pigs at any point. During
the speech, Aldrittinsisted, the crowd had shoutec "kiii the pigs' .'oune man one gun”
and "Black power will get your mama'’.

Bro Radford: I suggest to you that these were things you saw written on the placards,
that you didn't hear any of these things shouted.

Aldritt: I did.

Bro Radford- Did you hear the crowd saying "Rock away Bro 7' " and "‘Soclk it to me"
and " Right on Bro D" through my sgesch?

Aldritt: No, they didn't say that

Bro Radford: Then I suggest to you, officer, that I wasn't speaking to a West Indian
audience.

TUESDAY 26TH OCTOBER
Brother Radford (known to us, his brothers and sistevs as Darcus Owusu, hence Bro D),
carried on with his cross examination of Inspecicr Al dritt. While denying that he was
prejudiced against the demonstration taking place, Aldritt said that he would have, if

it had been his respons bility, broken up the demongtration before it started outside

the Mangrove and dispersed the people who had come the r= to protest the feelings of
their community.

Bro Radford: What did you think of the demonstraticn?

Aldritt: I thought it was a disgusting exhibition. .. .dz! ~ately calied to provoke violence
against the police . : 3

To establish the role of agent provocateurs on the Gay of thz cemonstration, Bro Radford
referred to an incident which had taken place cutside Notiine: Dale police station, one of
the places past which the demonstration went. 3

Bro Radford: Do you remember a white racist who 2
Notting Dale Police Station ?

Aldritt: There was a white man who walked towards the demonss he was led
away by police constables .... he may have mude remasls hut U dida't hear any.
Brother Radford pointed out to the court that the man was allowed 3o ‘qbout o0 back home
to your own country.-.niggers.." and such iikc. Daron e .
meeting when this took place, pointed out

poroached the demonstration outside

S, Wau was addressing the

0 the cvowd that thay should not be provoked
= ¢ : e A ot ond
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i e i rm.
by police agents ox by random iascists, they h

oo ad come to make a particular protest against
police brutality and an Individual st not be ' g ¢

allowed to distract them. He told the crowd
Vicool iti. I 1 Aldvitt 5¢ : ; i ;
to '"cool iL .Q-f.‘ afkfc. Aldvitt if he remembered any of thig. Ofcourse, as the prosecution's
ADT2AY X Yoq n =t r 1 3 = Y
case app «i\: L?i zes ",n'f ,c..-,,:a.,tmg the impression that a dangerous rabble had set out to attack
A e R M L 3
pgpcv, ra 13\: ihan that lack people were expressing a legitimate greivance, the witness
said he couldn't remen aay of this. : '
. R Nt Y S s 1 — /5 3 !
Turning t_u hl Oltnu.ll; Iniud, waexre the disturbance actually took place, Brother Radford
asked Aldxitt what he ielt-as he saw thig disturhance
Aldritt:. I was very frichiened.
Brother Radfexd,

himself watching pg!

to get the facts right, asked him to look at a photograph of
cemen manhandiing a single demonstrator. Any one with eyes and

a certai: amowit of digcrimination ecan see that Aldritt has a big grin on his face at the
time and is 100!’.1513; on with satisfaction at hig boys attacking a black man. Bro Radford
askefx hnn“to expair iae photograph to the court. "That's not a smile", said Inspector
Aldritt, " I seein to be in agony'. This ofcourse provoked more than smiles from the
court.

Aldritt then agreed that he had been present at theattempt to arrest Brother Rupert at
the Mangrove.. He £aid he couldn't remember how he got there, but remembered that

Mr. Howe {Brother Darcug) had instigated Boyce to get away, had taken partina

fight with policemen in the Mangrove, na jumped over a wall rito a back garden and
planned brother Ruperi's escape. He contradicted Superintendent Donélly who had
testified eariier that there were tifty policemen at the Mangrove at that time, by saying that
there were ahout & dozen police present. When it was put to him that he had contradicted
his superior, he agreed that there might have heen more than that.

Aldritt , answering questions, made it ciear to the court that the intention of going to

the Mangrove was ' arvest Rupert Boyce, that it had nothing to do with Brother Radford.
Bro Radford had been arrested after this particular incident at the Magrove by Pulley
and his ‘heavy mci)' as he was walking down Powis Square. In questioning Aldritt, Bro
Radfox appeared to i ing o establish that Puiley and his garg had no charges they

1 that Aldritt had seen him committing no arrestable offénce on the

could pin on him anrd
march or later.
Aldritt contrgdicted the testimony of Donelly at several points. He said he couldn't
.rememier that he was part of the two serials that Donelly had brought to the Mangrove,
he couldn't remember that Brother Radford had in fact followed him and Donelly out of
the Mangrove and '~ heen walling his own way just a few yards behind them .{.lS they
left. It was estadlichec in Aldritt's testimony that it was he who issued charges against
‘Brother Radferd when he was breught to the police station by Pulley's gang. Aldritt's
testimony then, is vital to Brother Radford's case, and throughout his cross examination
of this witness, ks was tampercd by the prosecution's objections and by the judge .On
Monday, as Brothexr ERadford got. te the point of reading the Inspector's notebools, the
prosecutor stcod up and sugpested that he was looking at notes in the book which were
not part of the teatimony e was examning. From a distance of ten yards in the
courtroom, the proscsuter had no way of knowing what Brother Radford was looking at in
the boolk:, but he used the opzortunity to interrupt the cross examination, Brother Radford
held the Eook up for the judge to see and demanded an apology from Hill for this sort

of allegation. When Pzc Radord was questioning Aldritt on Tu(?sday about what

occured a the Mangrove on August 9th, he was interrupted again.

Bro Radford: When you came into the Mangrove, is it not true, officer , that you didn't

have any reason “or arwesting me. ?
. < 3 1" 1
Aldritt agreed, when ihe progecutor jumped to his feet and said "that's not what I heard the
witness say'.
Judge:: That's
Hill: That's not what I heard the witness say
Bro Radford: That's bacauge you weren't listent g. : ‘
JUdge: I've given you a ot of latitude in this case because you're not an experienced
: : o e in thi is to addre

barrister and : snding youwself, but th: leiist_ you can do in this case is to address

i - the othew peopie in this trial: .. .
with some cotriesy the ofhex peop:e In hE e : ' 4 ;
As the judge had sunporied the prosecution on this vital point, .ecntrary to what the jury

1 AN S S L0 TIPTRAE DA 8157 ; :
and the rost of the courtroor: nad heard the witness say, Bro Radford went over the same
82 Ao L 1o A tal L WJLL

: i n the
point with the witness. wie gave the same answer. B;other I‘.{adfor_d standing i

right, I didn't hear it in my recollection. (Bro R goes thrdggtl- same pointagain)

~ LY
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- Judge:: (shouting, - obviously annoyed at ahving been proved wrong) No Mr. Howe, I don't
" want tothear anything from you, ask your next question.,

(Radford persists at this-point, trying to address the judge)
Judge: I have said no more from you Mr. Howe, just get on with your questioning.
Radford: In that case, go on with this railroading yourself, you can go on without me.

* At this point, seeing what was going on, the defendants all stood up in the dock. Rupert

Boyce , on his feet said "thig js a farce' and Rhodan Gordon, sceming to say what he
had f&+ for a long time, said ‘if you want to scnd us o jail, just do it, this is a
railrosad, -chhe! we wantno part of this". The gallery of black cople, imstantly underst-

“anding the fecling of the defendants , sceing what the judge and prosccutor were trying

to do, expressed the samie sentiment. "The railroad runs again'', someone shouted,
and the judge, completely take: aback by this brcakdown of his brand of 'justice''was

forced toadjourn the court an hour early and ratreat to his chamibers, leaving all his

DAPErs on his desk. The defendants wore taken downstairs by the police in the dock.
After the lunch recess, Radford Howe, who arese to address the court, in spite of
hostil ty from the judge, put some romariks on record. He said that the jusge kept

? . TRy o i ST 1 2 & 5 5 yin
-gpeaking of latitude and “allowing': this and that, but he was held thexre by British Law on

serious charges as were the rest of the defendants, and they wecren't asking for favours o:
latitude from the court, all they expected were their BIGHTS , they had a right to
defend themselves in a court of law and a right to expect irmpartiality from a judge.
Brother Rhodan Gordon made it known to the court that he wanted to deiend himself for
the rest of the trial.

YIEDNESDAY 27th OCTCEER

Aldritt, still in the box , told Defonce Counsel Ian MacDonald, that there ,were
riconsiderable rescrves of policemen at the police station,’ that there were '50C police
officcrs available” that afternoon. i

Chief Sypt. 'Trotmz}n, next in the witness hox, said in cross examination that he had
heard shouting on the demo. T could see PCs helmeis going into the crowd from the
wost side. I weht back and stood on the west side. The PCs were lined up facing the crov
I saw policemen drag a man along the pavement. I ¢ the crowd to calm down, there
were hysterical shouts of "the pigs started it, you started it, leave us alone’’, then the
TCs tried to arrest marchers and other marchers tricd to pull them free.........
After a number of people had been arrested, 1 told the crowd I wanted to get the march
moving again. They moved towards the junction of Malvern 102d and there was a skip
there and further fighting broke out........ I saw two police officers arrest a woman
on the corner of Portnall and Malvern Road. The woman wns shouting. Fcople ran down
Iialvern road and pulled the woman free. I went into Bravington Road, the crowd had
reassembled . Commander Ifaggs asked the leaders to step forward. Critchlow was
there about teoto three rows from the front. He madc no attciapt to go forward. ™

The whole of ‘Supt. Trotman's testimony, very vivid in its detail, appeared to be a
sincere attempt to recall from memory what he, in his capacity as a man there fto contr
a demonstration, had seen and heard. He admitied to Defence Counsel Goudie that

he only saw Commander Maggs after the tr uble had begun, =nd that it was decided by
Comn_m'.nde'r Maggs that the warch had gone on long enough and tust be broken up.
Contradicting what the clique of Pulley, Reid, Rogers, Lewis and Aldritt had said
ear-ier, this senior police officer who obviously hadn't entered into the making of thei
statements and testimony, said that he heard Brother Radiord's speech outside the
Mangrove and all hehéard the crowd say was ""yeah and cheer. :

BC Wilson, called next by the prosecution, said that he remembered Brother Roddy

- Kentish walking peaccfully on the march with a small child and admitted | that he

had not secen Bro Roddy again after the march reached Notting Hill Folice Station.

TC Vells, called next said that when the march reached Tortnall Road, black people

had come out 6f houses on both sides of the road and that they and the marchers then
7

picked up bottles and bricks and started throwing them. Zc claimed he'd been hit on
the head by a milk bottle and knocked out. Prosecutor ill asked him if he'd

“attacked anyotic. No', he replied, "I didn't have timec:.

; (:Sinqe the é\}énts of the week in the courtroom proved very significant, we find it

necessary to give a certain amount of space to each day's h-ppenings. On Thursday,
Defence Counscl Goudie demolished the prosecution's casc against Brother Innis, and
on Friday the photographer frora the Special Branch was in the box. As these days ;
deserve full reporting, we apologise for leaving them to next weeks report. Fower

to the People!)

e
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ahd two sisters,
_ v the 5th Oet. 1971
dce very sorious charges of INCITEMENT
| ASSAULTING POLICE, The charges arise
r}on of hlack people aguinst the victimisation of the
it in_ Na:imrr fill Gate by ihe police and police
ot the area. On this d&-mua@lr-ahon. on
2 will of l)ia ck ,seopi e to resist hecame y
o | had faken
and discredit it, When the demonstration
it the ne xi ice were at full strength, they launched
ﬁf.tacl‘«: on h e de mrws‘u-m m', vaused an affray . and arrested seventeen
;H]ez“ and sisters  Gihers were o lat various iimes in the year:
'fOH‘.)V\"iﬂ::‘"’ the ineidert. It e of 1"50' Mangrove Nine, the refusal of the
court 1o a[’;ow them to he' ied h\ uhck uu ars. the evident bias of the -
A -judge in tho mvdum of the case in f'eﬂex'al shows us very clcm‘-]"‘fz(‘)w the
pohm and the le;{ul gysterd are used to repress black people, theu‘ opinions
g.nd thetr 8 m‘mfn m {hx s country. '\[orc'Lh’m thal, it 1‘(—‘V(,’l.ls to uj our
mbmon in this socielv,




g v 29TH OCTOBER
Mf%mtmng specific to say about s
PC MCLINTON, glt‘)’;?ngs prought in to give cmphagis to thf—: pr?secutl?nxs picture of
01‘5 e defendantz, mo;stration of Sunday Aug. 9th 1970. He said, ' ?was hit by a brick by
e head and had tc have four gtitches. ' When questioned by Bro. Radfor, d,
two y?uths S8 th(-att]ea ho had stated in his cwn tostimony that he had been riding on the
?e fg;::cl;: t)fAiggl péli‘Ze coach, was actually seated in the coach with his back to the front
o%oit. PC Cant, brought in by the prosecution for the same purp?sg, unz'iple again to say
anything about the the defendants, gaid that he was standing behind a police cordon when
he was hit by a brick.

PC James Pew, next in the doc
On cross-examination, it turned out

k said that he saw a policeman hit by a brick fall forwarq.

that the policeman who he saw hit, was actually facing the
direction from which the brick came. Brother Rho.dan Gordon, defending‘ himself after_
dismissing his counsel on Tuesday, agked the PC if he had any recollection Of, COmm}g. around
1o his residence and seeing him outgide 303 Portobello Road. Brother Rhc?dan 8 que’_stlon
indicated to the court that the police of the area have kept a2 const@t Ch'eCK on black people
who live there. In questioning him, Brother Radford Howe, defending %nmsejlf, established
that the reason that PC Pew didn't get to the demonstration in the van in which he approacheq .
it, was that the police coaches were blocking the back of the demonstration. Earlier, PC
Pulley had said that he, in a private v#n, had been just behind the march, and that there
were no coaches in that particular position. Bro. Radford asked if Pew saw-anyone standing
on a wall. ; :

PEW: Yes

Bro RADFORD: What were they doing ?

PEW : Shouting'kill the pigs'

Bro Radford: (asking him to look at a photograph of the specific.area) Where were they?
PEW: (looking at the photograph) I can't remember. i

The next prosecution witness, Detective Constakle.Jones, was brought.in evidence specifically
against Brother Chad Innis. The Detective's story wag thatthe, _in plain clothes, accompanied
by PC Slaughter, went to the demonstration, saw Brother Innis-gtanding by a rubbish skip in
Portnall Road and picking up a brick from it. He said Brother Chad was about to throw the
brick at some policemen who were fighting with "four or-five coloukedmen at the corner of
Shirland and Portnall Road ', when he got out of hig car. Ak thid point, he eontinued, Bro
Chad dropped the brick and ran towards one end of the road. He pursued him and caught him,
ass%sted by PC Edwards. He stated thst Bro Chad had twisted azid broken PC edwards' thumb
d.urmg the arrest and shouted "fuck off white pi g". Defenco-Counsel James Goudie, represen”
ting Brother Chad, suggested to Jones that what actually ha.ppe-néd wag that they pursued
Brother Chad and walked behind him, in plain clothes on the pwv;;me(nt-‘-of Primall Road. He
cc?nsta.'ntly asked them if they were police as he had no way of lm‘o ing and they caught up

with him, arrested him brutally, kicked and beat him-on th&mvﬁni He suggested to th
witness that a fat policeman had been sitting on Bro Chag while the otﬁe‘r"pws kicked him

and dragged him away to the van beating him all the time. Policeman Jones said that this

wasn't the way it happened. Coungel Goudie then pointed out to.Jones that he had givon

contradictory testimony in his statement
- where b X : et Ty ELED
_-man® at the junction of Portnall and § ‘rland roade &1t e o B
IC:Zcunso e.l G:i)l;.l(-he then referred Jones to photographs 30 and 31 s"r&bmittg d by the police- He
Goumg'nmé e_ tlt(;lself and Slaughter in them. The strange thing shout 'chd photogmphS’ Mr.
further%i’:::neit Ol;;, mv;iz ;haadt Jones was not where he said he w’aél on Bortnall Road, bub

0 run in the di i 5 : ere
facing the wrong way,. Agiin, direction he had stated, "then Jdnes and S1aughicr ¥

: f Jones was where h i i im, bow did
Bro Innis get there. "He must have doubled e & was and Inpis was behind hlm,d out £ him

that to do that, Bro Chad would hay » 92id the witness. ! It was pointe

: DS @ passed him and Slaughter: '3 wad ful expose, &
in the end the ?v1tness gave no answers to the cuestion. ol w i'a’m"’gtel. He jus
stood there, silent and sweatin : S ‘whieh poured down on him.

loured

Det. Con. Lynch of the Special Branch ; e
By mnT Y memeeme ol U0) Who took ph graphs: ble 2%
auti{ was produced in cofirt. Cross~examifition n?ac?:) é'l""?hﬂsjh-q% thl-]? Jeno efoxe ixrc;l;e detailed
to keep tl:a.ck_ of p?litxcal people in the country ang th i ¢ chl . have 19
other police function. He had left the demo before theetfrh 0;:? S vers supsomrl e
] A »>vhlo ""Arf'ed..hf-‘ anid.




MONDAY 1ST NOVEMBER

; thre ‘ n?i E;C(;Ssc:tion alleging that one of their civilian witnesses
“this had something to do with the testimony ;: et W
witness who made these allegationg entere{i St’he gas S ol

she showed at being part of the R t}ex Ox on Thursday and:the evidént excitement
 box show us how reliable her mindiogs accu,Sat.e way she played out hgr fantasies in the
on the allegations and tried to uge them as one % are; T}}e prosecut%on’ S
trying to play. They were forced, by Tepeated l~nore I gmotxonal Eathcithovsrs
copies of blown—u[i‘photo'graphs which they had ﬁilelisétssffgg:thz Jturzrhto agree‘to ek

- PC COTﬂ_an in the bfax, under cross examination, furthsclar strelngiher?ed sn(;og?tilé two
contradictory StOI‘I_eS _WhiCh policemen in the box had constructed. He said-he'd been on the
~ demo from the beginning. “In Portnall Road we formed a cordon. . .. Commander Maggs
told us to put. our truncheons away, I think he did that becuase they would be provocative. . .
I don't know if anyone disobeyed him', He said. He told dister Althea Jones . when she
asked him, that none of the defendants were the people whom he said he sa“"a,'ttacl{ing a
PC.He told Jan MacDonald, cross-examining for sister Barbara Beese, that he couldn't
remember if any PCs had takeh banr\xers away from the marchers, but agreed that they
‘may have done. "The scuffles that I saw, I don't know if it was police or the marchers

‘who started them', he added. ot Sdexgait - Mills who gave evidence next, said he saw
Brother Rupert Boyce throw a brici: at a policeman, and when he tried to catch him,; was
violently pushed. He said Boyce was running so fast that he couldn't catch him. This seems
to be in copflict with th e Pc Jones-PC Slaughter conspiracy to.say that brother Rupert

was standipg next to the rubbish skip in Portnall road when they first saw him.

TUESDAY 2ND NOVEMBER _AND WEDNESDAY 3RD NOVEMBER
All thrpugh the trial the press has been playing the dirty game of printing the horror
stories which the prosecution and police conspiracies bring to the trial. On Monday
evening, ‘in spite of the judge having accepted that the defendants had nothing to do
with threats to witnesses, the EVENING NEWS printed a piece about threats to witnesses
by black power'" people. The defence, acting as one man, missing nothing, pointed this
out to the judge and forced him to instruct them to ignore as false the EVENING NEWS
gecare propaganda. _
The evidence that PC Czlderwocd and PC Woods gave evidence against Sister Althea
] Jones.' They élleg’é& that as they came up to Sister Althea on Portnall Road, -she picked up
" . a milk bottle and threw it at a group of PCs. :

~ PC WOODS: (To Sis Althea) It was definitely you who threw the bottle. I am also certain
" that I helped to arrest you.. ..I would say I was the first officer to-grab hold of you. Then
~others arrived, they helped me to take you to the van when it came to the point of arrest
It scemed that the sergeant was arresting you for gomething else. I didn't go to tl'le pol'ice
station or lay charges. " 0 ~ o McDermott and Calderwood who gave evidence agau.nst sister
Althea said on the other hand that they were in the process of arresting"'another sxsbe? and
m and hit Sgt McDermott with a wooden figure. They all admitted
traint and badn't been

Althea rar up behind the
that the arrest was violent, but that they had used extreme res

brutal to Sister Althea. ; =
PC Crossman and PC Lally gave evidence to do with the arrest of Sister.Barbara. Crossman,

questioned by Jan MacDonald said he saw Sis Barbara pick up a piefze.of wood and strike a.
white man. "He didn't appear to be part ofthe march. He had bee:} in front of me for abo.ut
one minute'’, he added, ' Until this happened there‘had }Jeen noI vxolgnce. 1 “!'ent‘up todess
Beese and grabbed her by the arm and said to her put it down I- Suliel wrest}e«fit free an s
raised the wood over her head as if to gtrike me on the hea(? -thp Jﬁ--mli 1;3 a:? I1111 dst :i é
- struck me on the arm. Other oificers helped me t.o put her in the van .'d : ¥ co lthie 2 :
PC ‘Phfllips , claimed that he saw the incident vx.nt?x PC Cmgsrtr;an;o gai e a:i:;dnt% -dl;i :if
Sister Beese. The Judge asked 51 ster Alt'he.a and ki :is ué Althea, Jones Lecointe as Barbara
mistake for each other, to stand - and Phillips picked o ANy e th
to have arrested.Ian Macdonald, for the Slsfer’ put i )
policem tz;)ﬁedhappened was that the wh?te man entered the march, grabbed
pR (st whac Ao e knee -and when she tried to pull it back from him,-she was
s r told the court that there were 2Inspectors,6Sgts.

her banner and broke it over Supt. Sadle

arrested. On Wednesday . Chict uutpH arrow Road Police Station”. Asked by Brother Radford

and 40 PCs were "there fo protec Jioe and the black community was extremely good. ' When
po +inna, tho waality _Qt police repression in the

Beese whom he was sup

. he said “'the relationship between e
Bro Radford began running down. tha



'grove and quoted mc1dents of police attacks, suggestmg that the area had a hlstory of
antagonisms, the judge stopped him and ruled that this essential background to the demo

‘- could not be explored.

IHURSDAY 4TH NOVEMBER AND FRIDAY 5TH NOVEMBER

On Wednesday the cross-examination of the posse of civilian witnesses for the prosecution
began. Mr Cornelius Harwis of 170 Portnall Road, said that he heard chanting and smgmg
at about 4.15 that day and looked out and saw the demo. "I was really surprised to see all
these demonstrators coming down the road. There were police on either sifle of them. ...
The police tried to hold them up before they got to Malvern road. The ones in front were
trying to slow them down....In my view the persons at the back massed up into a big
mass. All of a sudden there were hottles and bricks thrown. Then there was a big confusior.
I couldn’t see where the bottles and bricks were coming from. It seemed as if the police
were trying to calm them down. .... There were police and marchers on the floor. . . it
lagted about half an hour (police had said that the incident lasted at most seven mmutes)

I saw two policemen and several demonstrators being carried away. The police formed
up , :what was left of them and went into Bravington road, ... the demo went intc Malvern
road gnd it calmed down as quickly as it started.”

When questioned by defence counsel Croft, he added that he saw a lot of demonstrators
thrown to the ground as well. He added ""What I think happened was that the people at the
back were confused. I-saw-nothing to suggest that the (incident) was organiged. I saw
nothing apart from police stopping the march which caused trouble. I had a clear view. "
The police introduced several civilian witnesses who added no othing significant to their
factual case, but empham.,od that they were frightened by such an occurence on a Sunday
afternoon in London. The furction of these witnessges is clear. ‘The prosecution hag been
congistentl y trying to cr reate in the mmds of the jury this p1ntu1o of psychological ingec-
urdty. They also.help the ploqecutmn on the sentimental level of showing the confidence of
certain citizens in the police. My Mothersole, who said he didn't see anyone directing the
ﬁghtmg He asserted tha'r the pchce behaved very well]' they never liftedtheir hands to
anyone. i-In. -open contradlctvon to what several prosecution themzelves had said, Mr.
Mothersole said " the police didn't draw their truncheons. They never drew their trunchec
at all. Our police never laid a hand on anyone. "

Mr. StanleyBri ght, whose testlrwon v w'vs glven on Thursday and raised cetain questions of

Friday, said that when he went out ofi the street a disturbance was a ready taking place.He
gave his evidence in chief ag directed by prosecutor Hill and said thut he was worried abot
safety of the police and on his own 1nt1at1ve, rang 999 for help. When cross-examined, he

‘den ed that he had given any statement to the press at all. When Brother Radford -quoted

his anme and his statement to the press to him, he agreed that reportersihad phoned him
and asked him questions kut hadn't bsen' o 'sec him. It emerg ed iater, in the testimony of
Mrs.; O'Conell that reporters had in fact been round to Mr. Bright's and Bro Radford

‘read in court the statement he had given to the Daily Telegraph.

Mr. Bright said to the news agency which took hig statement t‘lat the police: wont into
the crowd with truncheons, tc disperse it.' He said, the day after the demo that black

. people:had retaliated to thig attack with bottles and anything they coul d find in the street.

Bro.Radford, crosg examining, suggested that that was what he had sa 2id to the press.

-He said he. thouglt he d said it to tne prcss 1o the police and to the preliminary hearing

at. M rylebone court, This datement in sp;‘:e of what Mr. Bright said, did not appear
anywhere. in the statement that t’le rohce had presented to the. court. Bro. Radford
ascertained from the witnegs that what he had said and what he maintained was true had
somehow, not been presented as part of his §tatement to tho court. VI gave that statement
to Detective Constgble West. 1 inciuded that, I'm’Quite sure.l was talking, he was writing

- When agked by Bro Radford about the ‘wall he was supposed to have climbed, Bright said:

"I agree there ig a wall outsudc 203 with wooden pallngs on top.I would be say that it wouls
*_be hard to Jump over and dangeroug. "

When Detective Constable West was put in the box and  nailed by this allegatlon that he
bad distorted a witness' atatement, agreed that if it had been said it should have been
put down in hig statement. Brother Radford put it to him: that Bright had actually said it,
and the policeman replied that he couldn'i remember. When the policeman was told that
Bright had clearly stated that this had been part of his statement, West said that it may
bethat Bright's memory was better than hig, but he hadn't taken it down. The implicatior
about what police do with unfavourable testimony is not hard to draw and needs, in our
opinion, no emphagis. Such is the case. 2t AF
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. The fighting

Ques »’clonnd by Sister Althea, Miss Lewis ideatifie
submitted %o the court.
Dr. Emmet Glasgow was next called as a character wi tness for Rupert Royce. A
photographer and a surveyor, empioyved on behall of Brether Fraok Critchlow were
calted and fold the court where certain phiographs submitted by the prosecution we re
taken from. The evidence of the two in conjunction proved conclusi that if the-
photographer had been stationed in the Ashmore~Shiriand Road junction, the van that
PC Pulley claimed to have been in could not have been where Pm]ey said it was. The
proseculor wa s later forced to admit ihis.
Opening the defence of Sister Barbara Beese, Counsel Ian Mac dOL':JId said that the .
p‘n‘ésec:ution‘s ease against her 'reste@ on four points ; 1) that she carried a pig's head

n a stick. Lots of people had done that 2) That she was in cloge preximity to Miss A
'md was one of the chavt leaders. Tm e were other people who were. close to Miss A
during the demo. including policemen. No one had given evidence that she led any chants.
3) That she had faken part in a conference near Notting Hill police station, a clustex of
people conferving in the voad. Bhe must have falked to a lot of people that-day; and even
if three or four heads we re pot together outside Notting Hill, the police had not said
that anyone knew o r heard what was said, it could have been a chat about the eominon
smarket. 4) That she was approached h,' “ommander Maggs about the route of the demo
and swore at him. Well, Chief Superintendent Trotman himself bas said that it wasn't
Barbara Beese but a gir] in a brown corduroy suit who wa s involved in thig litile exchange.
Tan Macdonald added that even if all these four points we re conceded (which they weren't),
ihey still didn’t amount to an istent to cause a punch-up and were in no wa y related to riot
or affray or assault or anything of the soxt.

ns of the photographs
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TUESDAY 30TH NOVEMBER

Sister Barbara Beese, in the stand , said that she attended the demonstration because
she had heard about it in the community. It wa s much talked about in the Grove. She

gaid she marcjed wi th the main body of the demonstration and definitely did not take
part in any conference outcide Notting Hill Police Station. As the demo turned into
Portnall road, she wa s at the rear, not in the front as Inspector Aldritt claimed. .
ARRESTED AFTER BEING ATTACKED BY MAN IN CIVILIA N CLOTHES

As the march turned into Shirland road, Sister Beese continued, something happened

to cause a scuffle. "Iwa s not involved', she added, ''the scuffling took place in the
middle of the Ashmore-Shirland junction. I crossed over to the pavement. I had

picked up a placard earlier whi ch said'Bands Off Black People'. A man in civilian clothe!
came over and snatched my placard. He wa s well-built, white. I asked him what the hell
he thought he wa s doing. He broke the placard over his knee as if he was mad.I went

to get the placard back and I wa s grabbed by uniformed policemen. I said " it's him you
should be arresting not me''. I wa s not told why I was arrested. I was put into a

black maria and taken to the police station."

Brother Delroy Robinson, wi tness for gister Barbara, said thht he frequents tha Metro
club in the Grove. The we ek after the demonstration he went to the Metro and people

we re talking about the demo and he described what.he saw there including the

unwa rranted arrest of a girl. Pecple told him it must be Barabara Beesc and so the
young brother, rig hteously went down to the Mangrove and left his address and offered
to come to court and tell it like it was. He confirmed sister Barbara'# cvidence, saysng
that he wa s marching next to her when the white man attacked her and anatched the bannec
from her hand. As she attempted to retrieve it, she wa s arrested.

I didn't see Miss Beese strike any police officer. It we uld have been impossible for her
to strike a police officer wi th her arms and legs held’, he added.

Brother Godfrey Millet, charged originally under the name of Roy Caboo, maintaining
that he had no case to answe r, elected to give a statement from the dock instead of
entering the stand. He said "My name is not Roy Caboo. I recieved a leaflet about the
demo in Shepherd's Bush market and volunteerced to distribute leaflets. I did not speak

to any black o man wi th athalf-caste child' (as the prosecution have alleged). I was not
recruiting passers-by . I didn't take part in any fighting in Portnall Road. I am innocent
of all charges Lt

Prosccutor Hill, to make his case sound more honest than it is, stood up in court and
made the followi ng admissions: He admitted that Pulley's van wa s not in the cross of
Ashmore and Shirland road when the photograph showi ng the demo at that point were
taken. He admitted that Brother Frank Critchlow was wea ring dark clothes on the day
and so couldn't have been the man that Chief Suptdt. Saddler had identified outside Harrow
Road police station "in bright clothes'.

WEDNESDAY 1ST DECEMBER

The prosecutor applied to call an Inspector Meynell who was involved in an earlier
political trial. whi ch arogeout of a police attack on a dance at the Oval House. The
prosecution said that the ‘point of calling Meynell wa s to establish that Sister Althea

and Sister Beese we re in the court during that trial when a sister, who is ina
photograph wi th Brothér Darcus, was giving evidence as a wi tness. Though the identity
of the particular sister has nc particular bearing on the case, the prosecution wa s trying
to tell the jury that sister Althea wa s married to a brother who had already been
railroaded on a pdlﬂﬁeal charge. Meynell's test1mony wa s that the police I{L,pt a record
of "all members" who came into the public gallery. ‘‘Membor of what?'" sister Althea
asked. ""Members of the publici’, the policeman sald.

Meynell insisted that the records of people coming in and going out of the court "had been
destroyed’. Yet on Q’rbss examinagion, Meynell could only remember the name and
address of the part'iéula__r si ster, but not the names or addresses of any other defence

wi tnesses involved in that case. Brother Darcus asked him the address of one of the
defendants in that cé.’se *, but Meynell's accomodating memory could not even recall that,
all he remembered wa/ 8 what the prosecution wanted him to remember in the current
railroading. '

This admission of the activities of the special branch against the people, ended the
sequence of evidence in the trial. The next day the prosecution began to put its pieces
together in its summing up.
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Enoch Powell, speaking fo the Chamber of Commerce
black community of Southali, London, launched anothe
cileulated hysteria on black people,

This opportunist, who in 1849 had advised the Tory governiibni io reconquer
newly independent India hy force of arms, said it is micre truly when he looks
into the eyes of Agia that the Englishma with those who
will dispute with him, the possession of his uative land ; "
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By his well calculated rabid speech . Powell has given politi

+

the racist murderers who have, burnt the homes
Asion families in the Midiands. The speech represenis aucthér attempt to create
a climate of insecurity for black people living in Britain. By picking out the
4sing Powe!l, sceks to divide the black community, thus making it easier for

<2 business interests he represents to attack the organisaiions that the Asian
workers bave created, to protect themselves from naked esploitation in the
factories and places of work (mainly foundries, engineering and textile factories).

At a time when the war of iiberation in Ireland , and the crisis of the economy
ot home threaten the capitalist interests in Britain, Powell is attempting to dist-
ract the workers , and use black people as the scapegoats for the situation that
his government is creating, wage frecze, rising prices and high unemployment:
With his usual rag-hag of faise statistics and zabble wousing, Powell called once
again for a strengthening of framigration laws, and for veluniary repatriation' -

The unity displayed to him and his goverment when Asians, Africazs and Afro-,
Caribbeans marched through the streets of London, and of cities all over
Britain to protest against the latest Immigration Bill, is a veality which Powell
and the capifalists want to destroy. It will take more than the words of one
fageist , about the different degrees of threat he feels from Asians and Cariba-~
eass, to desiroy our unity.
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LONDON- HACKNEY

On wed. 27thQct.two twin sisters who were on their way home at Haggerston Estate

Hackney. E.8, was attack: i by a dog from aneighboring house. T.he. gisters tl.lrowing
atin to defend themselves from this attack, was suddenly, and viciously Sft upon by
. 10 or more white people from the same house from which the dog c.ame. ,Lh‘ey were
armed with pieces of wood, and iron, and started beating and plmcl:ung the sisters.
One of the sisters struct in the face, 1 on the ground bleeding while her attackex"s
fled. An ambulance soon cametaking the sisters to St. Leonards Hospital, where it
was found thai the sister was suffering from concussion, and also had to recieve

7 stiches to the face wound.

Police sometime later arrived on the scene, claiming that there was no one in the
flat, so there is nothing that they could do.The sisters husband Mr. Migg paid
geveral visits to theCity Rd. Police Station where the investigations are suppos e
tobe carried out, but on each occasion the Police just said nothing doing yet.

Sothis is the position of the two sisters who are one of the NUMEROUS cases of
white racist attacks in London and more S0 all over the country, where the Police
fail to carry out any arrests, because the sufferers are BLACK.Also on that same
Egtate only a few weeks ago, simular attacks occured, but the police on all occasion
never went as far as to take peoples names to help with the investigations. Brothers
and sisters, this attack on that particular Estate is the most serious so far. We
must organise around the hiigg's family; and ‘All other dttacis that takes place in
our community.

Brother Joshua Francis who is the victim of BRIXTON police brutality, appeared at
The foresters law courts, Weston st. London 3.e 19, The brother who was in bed
ag aresult of an acident with london transport Nov. 1970, when police from brixton
enter his home on sunday Nov. 22nd.and severely beat him up, resulting in a
long period of hogpitelisation.

As the trial open, the police claimed that they are unable to understand the hand-
writing of the previous transcript, so they wanted moxre time to contact the person
who took the notes when the case was commitied to sessions How long this will

take is anybodys guess. : ;

One thing that must be remembered, is that this particular caseof Brother Francis
recieved massive publicity which took the form of Pickets, Demonstrations,and
meetings in the Black Community.Hence the police know. that there are playing with
fire.

BRIXTON-S.E LONDON

POLICE IN PLAIN-CLOTHES LAY-WAIT TO BRUTALISE BROTHER

New tactics ihe Brixton Police are using, was discovered and felt by brother Octavius

A. Mccleod. It was on Wéﬁnesday Oct. 11th, that the 63 year old Brother returnin
home from the PUB or (BAR) was set upon by two white men. ?

They took his bag demanding to see what was inside, after a little résis’cance, the
brother unable to contend with the two THUGS, gave in, when one forced his hands be-
hiindhis back, and the other grabbed him by the throat.Again the brother struggled,
and managed to shout for MURDER, some people passing by rushed to the scene, and
it was only then that these two white racist identify themselves as police officers.

#le was then taken away and charged with agsaulting two pblicemen. At the station his
belongings which include his gavings were taken, andnow gix weeks later none of his
£450 has not been returned. The constant brutality and railroading of black peoble must
gtop. The next hearing of Brother Mc Cleod's case is at Lambeth Court on29th Nov. T1.

‘Organise & seizentime!



MOZAMBIQUE --- AFRICA
Tortngeso Murder Thousandg: /'« . . . e
.0 On the 3'rd'of' NO’V'A - Moxe than three thousand African b;otilers~1nd slils,te:'rs fled £
Mozambique &3%I=/Ia1awi_. aftera ruthtegg: attack by Portugese S'Olz]iarg- s te ; i
of Mphonde village in the Téte aven; neay the Caborra Baga ‘Damv'szr.ic;ihi:“ﬂ??a'ml-l’
goldiers arrived suddenly a few days ‘earlier androrderdd :he'v111; ers :to (I . wetﬁ o
‘ ‘hom,e's._"She said \that'_whilfe they were leaving, without any: Wafninc"g fivé »P:jtue S
“aireraft flew o‘Verhe‘adgnd-dpenédtﬁ're with machine g‘uns: -Many-gv’erekilled -'uglsée
others injured as theytned to run. Soon afterwards, Portusege troops 1andec; 05 mee
in helicopters to take ‘away the Woun‘déd,.-but'the’*/il'lagers h;d in the. bush before begm— :
ning a three day walk to Malawsi. They were.fo-ree'd-.to.travel‘by‘night and sleep-under cover
by day. The Portugese claim that the massacre waga result of 2 confrontation.between
their forces and guerillag belonging to Frelimo ~-- the Front for the Libération of
Mozambique. The refugees interviewed said that thete wag' ng-fighting' @ a11: before the -
Portugese moved ih and attacked: their villageg., A portugése official. admitted that . -
iigome sbldiérs carriéd‘out-déeds’beyon‘d their ecommitment' .- ~ . W sh Gl
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JOHANNESBERG=--- SOUTH AFRICA: ~~ . - ... .. e
Asian Detainces Torturéd ST < o S e i S s
~Last week brother Ahnied Timol, an Indian schoclmaster, . plunged to his death from & ten
g_toi'ey" window during interrogation by South African:police in Johannesburg: The police
claim it wag "'guicide’ . “Atother brothér, “Abdulla Jassat ; now living in London; who was
'interrogated" by Johannegburg police in March '63, says he challenges therstory because
of his own experience . He was arrested after an explosion of the Johannesburg railway
station . The next day, he says, he wastakéh to-a room. o the second oF third floor of the
‘city's main railway siation where twenty pslicemén were ‘waiting for him: He: told them -

* he knew nothing of the explosion or the people who srganisedit.:The police grabbed him
froh behind ', dropped a gack over his hetid-and tied it round hisknees. He was then laid-on
the floor and a policeman whispéred i fiis edr "look Abdool, "you had better start talking .
or'we are going to sét you alight?2 He heard.a match being lit but-said again that he could.
tetl them nothing." The police then removed his shoes and socks , attached wires to hig ..
toes and gave him clectric shocks. They started at 25 volts and.went upto 225 volts while
the brother kept screaming that he knew nothing. When they finally stopped,. ..tl__x‘e__b‘roth_e’r s
was so shaken that he couldn!t speak at all, so they. picked him anid threw him agaiist the-
wall. When he got to his, feet he found himgelf near a window. Two pigs grabbed him again,
thig time by his ankles, and started pushing him head-first out of a win_dé\'i{._v’l_‘v_lviey'l._éft' him
hanging there for about five minutes , pretending to let him go every now and then and" -
laughing whenever he-screamed. Brother Jassat managed to escapé’ 83 days later, but has
never been able to w: rk since then as he now suffers from epilepsy and frequent blackouts.
These are the methods that the racist police have been using against black people in South .

. Africa. The detth of brother Timol 1ast week shows us that they will stop at nothing, and
~“will 6nly be stopped by the will, ‘the powsr and the arms of the black libérators of Africa;

CARIBBEAN NEWS : ' el ) T T

5 Mmrl Rife In Grenada ' (From Voice of The Cribou Movement;‘Grenada,'-,
3 Canaco and Petite Martinique) 5 Die e
Government minigtérs in Grenada are kiown t5°be working hand in hand with locial busibess-

men to exyloit posr people.«One such business, Kirpal_;mi‘s__‘fecently opened tw\? sto_res,

one in St George's,: the .’c'api‘taI",' ‘and ‘the other in .Grecv_(ﬂle. AJL t_hose ulzh? ‘went' to get a

job at Kirpalani's were made to join'the union, controlled'1 by Prime Minister Garry. About

500 people were rbf)bed of their monay under the pretext that they would get work when

Garryand his enchmen knew fully well that only thirty persons were to be employed.

- Meanwhile the unemployed continue to pay union fees apd ﬂ\va1t the "'next vacancy"

Smugglers : i , = s ;

- Government ministers also share the profits of the large scale smuggling of goods around
the Lance—Ahx—Epix‘és area . This extensive smuggling helps the -busmc—ss_men to evac‘ie
taxes on imports and places an increased strain-on the already over-exploited Grenadian

tax-payer. P B e o i

Wat er Shortage : : : i, AN AR
" With the govt. bus y looking after its own interests’and those it blflillneszimen, people
are being deprived of essential services. For about three quarters of the day, taps and :

tanks are without water, and the rst of the time the Wat(.ér if .Egnzzii‘t:h;uz}zr:fge is
breaking down, the sowage system and an epidomic threatens Ea country '




LAUREL MISSISSIPI USA
Black and White Sawmill Workers Strike :
For the last few weeks, in Laurel Misssissipi, sawmill workers have been on .strike.
Seventy (percent of the workers are black and thirty per cent white. The strike represents
a breakthrough in struggle, in the heartland of American racism, and shows clearly,
that organisation causes workers to identify their true enemies. It is vital that these
workers receive all the support that cam be mustered, especially financial, even though
this may be modest at first. In situations like this a defeat may mean a victory for the
people who profit by stirring racial hatred. A victory for the workers would, in America
and elsewhere, have wide implications for joint action of this kind.

For further Information on this particular strike, contact Tom Allgood, Apt. 1,

535 8th Avenue, Laurel, Mississipi.
Power to Struggle of the Workers!

BRITISH INDUSTRIAL NEWS IN BRIEF _

The fight in the Upper Clyde Shipyards, between workers and the Tory, capitalist
government , took a tough r turn, when , on Friday 5th November, 8500 workers held
a conference in the shipyard and told the Trade and Industry Minister John Davies,
that unless all their jobs were guaranteed, they would not allow any ships , after those
to be launched in the nexy ten days, to leave the yard. The government has had five
months to take positive action, and as they have done to strikes in the last year, have
tried to play a .waiting game, hoping to weaken the resistance of the workers.Shop
stewards throughout Scotland, have called for a one day stoppage on November 24th to
support the UCS workers. ;

POLICE RELEASE DOGS ON ATRPORT WORKERS

On Monday. 1st November, 40,000 London airport workers, struck in protest against the
handing over of ground handling: contracts, to American owned ,General Aviation Services.
They felt that this contract , given.to a foreign firm, put the jobs of several airpdrt
workers in jeopardy.' On the first day of the strike, the management were aided by the
police, who tried to scare the workers by letting loose dogs on them. The workers, by
their action have forced Iberia Airways to agree to consider giving up its contract with
General Aviation Services. '

POST OFFICE TOWER BOMBED

Following the bombing of the Post Office Tower in Central L.ndon last week, police
- department chiefs have issued a statement that though they don't know who is responsible
1all extremists are suspesti’. The explosion in which no one was killed or injured, gives
the government an excuse to round up anybody whose politics threaten the status quo.
From recent events in Ireland , the brutality and torture that this regime has unleashed
on the Irish people, we know what they mean.

UR T
Tan Purdic and Jake Prescott, who have been in prison over ten months, awaiting trial,
in connection with the bombing of the house of Robert Carr, Minister of Employment anc
Productivity, will appear at the Old Bailey on Wednesday 10th November.
There will be a picket and demonstration, starting outside the Old Bailey, on Wednesday
morning at 10 am. s
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Feegom meeting

5% . 5 ; . ‘ 5 : -
for blacK suffering PQ‘,O,PIQ: in Triniélad & /g'bagg

Tor the second time ineightéen months Eric Williams' government has been forced t
call a state of emergency, to combat the will of oppressed people to contro! the resour
of the country. WE IN BRITAIN MUST TAXE A STAND LET US ALL STAND TOGETE

- AND SUPPORT ONE ANOTHERY,

Come and participate

on SUNDAY 21st NOVEMBER 1971, at the CO_OPERATIVE HALL

€ 129 SEVEN. SISTERS ROAD.FINSBURY PARK LONDON N.7. , from 3pm.to 9pm
Speakers include West. Indian historian C.L.R.JAMES
Revolutionary Play on the Black Experience, by the Black Panther Movement.

Films about the struggle of oppressed people all over the world.
*********************************************************
For further information, Phone 01-278-1791, or call at 154 Barnsbury Rd. London N.1
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" These figures direcily e policy in stopping subsidies to industry

and foreing up f);*ic(:)g in an effort to curb demands for moere pay. The government is now

" worried at how i is poiici’és have failed miserabiy and is vow t rying hali-heartedly to

reflate the cconomy in the hope of carbing the number of jobless, and eventually bringing

down unemployment. '

Last night My Ian Mikardo, Labour MP for Poplar, saidto & meeting of Labour
and trade union groups 'The government's determination to keep the unemployment figures
ap to a miliion, uo matier how miuch economic damage and personal navdship it causes,
isa't just an aceident, it is an essential part of their total strategy, Combined with the

Industrial Relations Act, it is designed to wealken the power of the unions io negotiate
increasss in wages which are needed to keep up wi th spiralling prices and with the spiralling
vents thet are coming very soon.' He arguéd that the government would not reflate the
economy, because a policy of growth would increase irports and cut the balance of

payment; reserve needed to cover the cost of entering the Common Mavket.

Nearly half Britain's unemployed are getting no govermment unemployment benefit ——-
2 document publizhed on Thursday by the Child Action Poverty Group revezled.




: TEXTILE WORKERS STRULE :
Ast&b?m;ti'ylzld;n‘x a.r\LLaiu?fam wo rkers at the Perivale Gute.rmltvln gui;f:aiacgii r1: West
London are on strike over 2 management borus scheme. Perivale nly 90 rern,ain Ma o

ditions are atrocious, once employed 185 wo r kers but. nm:l o5, : ST
o loved the use of a bonus scheme, which was reject3d by eRroiersiandbiurthor
ﬁizofggozehave r;acbed a ceadlock. The strike will probably be made official by the

Transport Workers Union and bag 109% wo rkers backing.

PRESCOTT- PURLISE mFRAME UP! i L ;

Jake Prescott and jan Purdie, so-called "Angry Brigade" members, trial began at
Old Bailoy or the 10ih November. The prosecutor was Mr John Matthew. Prescott ang

the 7 @2 e ix other people, who between 1968 and 1971 committed

i Aherond alone with s
Purdic are chzrged along wit i peop ndi
twenty five bomb attucks and shooting incidents as alleged by the prosecution. Among them

John Davieg znd Robart Carr's home.

INDIA - KERALA
150, 000 Wor vike against Birla raonopoly.

and coffes piantations and 15,000 rubber wo rkers Yve Te e%mong
the 150,000 who have been out on general gtrike’ in th? Sou_th In.dian State off Iﬁra}cla}ksm(;i 3
the 26th October. The wo rker’ wers called out by their unions 1.n support o g. sB1:1 le a

2 bonus claim by the wornkers of a rayon pulp factory near Kozh%kody owned by Birla, one
of the handful of families that control 211 Indian capital. Thc‘a strﬂfe hz%s paralysed the. ;.)orts,
basaars and goods gnheda of the state and caused a very serious sgituation for the. coalition
government  of Indira Ghandi's. cohgreza and the right wing, so.-called Communist Party
of India whe have entered into an alliance withiMrs Ghandi against the people ?f the_ state.
The ministeys of the government for from helping the o rkers, betrayed the un10{1s in

: ok the livelihood of 150,000 and support the Birla

oa

35, 000 workera of the iea

negotiationa and ave wil iing fo ail > -
monopoly which is a strangichold over the ecomomy oI Tndia.

BRITAIN : IMMINENT SELL OUT T0 RHODESIA,

The foreign sseretary, Mr A. Douglas-Home visited Rhodesia this week for talks
wi th Mr Smith and MNational African leaders. Smith by his actions apparently s quite con-
fident of a gettlement with Britain, although Rhodesia is well set on the same path as
South Africa, and haa continuslly fiouted Britain's "five point peace plan'. Smith also
categorically has sald that he is against majority rule in that country.

GRASS  ROUTS HARASSED.

COn Satux ‘cay, fhrec special branch officers made unsuccessful attempts to get into
Grass Roots Digtribution Centre. The next day they spoke to the circulation manager
Brother Tony Sinaris, and also demanded to speak to Brother Jamal, the editor,but was
told that he was unavailable. On 8th November Dt. Insp. Hovell went to Brother Sinaris
and told him to arrange a meeting hetween the police and Bro. Jamal. In the meantime
a deci@ion to relieve Bro. Jamal of his duties and instate Bro. Kimathi had been taken.
The police being unable to obtain Bro. Jamal decided to take Bro. Tony, using the excuse
that he was Jamal, and after being cautioned he was led away.

Grass Koots, because ii is so influential , believe that the police will try to
silence the paper by putting pressure on the printers and bringing charges against the
members of the committee.

MINISTRY OF HEALTH BEPORTED TO RACE RELATIONS BOARD.

A si!\'h woman's protest over very personal religious and marriage questions on a
maternity grant form has led to minister of health (Sir) Keith Joseph, being reported to
the Race Relations Board accused of discrimination. The questions raised on the f orm
ranged from age at marriage to various questions on how, when, and where the ceremon!

was conducted. The official complaint was made by the executive of the Bradford Commun-
ity Relationg Council.

COVENTRY TOOLRUGM WORKERS STRIKE,

8,000 Coveniry toolroom wo rkers strike took place on Friday, November 19th, and
could continue for a long time. The strike is to force the management to reinstate the
thirty year old wage agrccment whi ch was discontinued at the end of August.



WASHINGTON-- D _C
UNITED STATES OPERAT

Lol

ING A POLICY OF RESTRICTING THE No OF BLACK _GISI

—IN ICELAND

...In;Washington the houge of representativeg wh
that some official documents stated that the U

- of Black GIs sent to Iceland The Caucas Co- Chai
the secret material shows that " Racism hag b
milifa ry"

ich include a Black Caucus it was revealed

ecome institutionalized at all levels of the

It has aléo_ exposed that the Governments of W,
likewise nolicécies

U.S Secretary.of Defense Melvin Laird in a press report said that he was aware of some

aggignments ‘_chat have been made on the basis of COLOUR. He further went on to say that
the present. Nixon Administration wag now doing away with all such activities in all the
services S0 ;

Germany Greece and Turkey operated

Dr. FI' 2L CASRO VISIT TO CHILE
BREAKING POINT IN L AMERICA

Fidel Castro the Cuban Leader now on atour of CHILE wag given a hearty and reveloution-
ary welcome by thousands of Chileang of all agesIn a public speech he gaid that "we must
fighton until the people can complete the work of our independent heroes'' He further went
on to say that he will send afilm of the huge welcome by the peoples of Chile to President

" Nixon so he,can-sece how the peoples of L America live

Castro also unbuttc=2d his bush (Green) jacket to show reporters that there was no truth in
his wearing of abullet proof vest IN his final leg of his tour the Cuban leader suffering

with a cold and.abrdken vbice due to the speeches he been making maas still fit enough to take
part in a Bagket ball game and meot peasants - workers and ordinary citizens

In &CIICEPCION Chile s biggest steel works Castro recieicvéd yet another big welcome It
ig also here that Chiles pro- gmerilla revolutionary left-wing movement first operated

. TOTTENHAM MAGISRATE s CORRT(N. LONDON)
FHREE WORKERS ON TRIAL

e e O e s A S

©n July 10th '197i, some 250 People joined amarch organised by the Lond n Alliance in

.Defence.of Workers Wrights. The Demonstration was called like many others of its kind to

' ﬁmtest and tb bring more'closely to the people in the North London area the double im-
plications of the IMMIGRATION& INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS BILLS which at the time were
both lixlxder.,xie'view. (both:'._bil_lsi. are now law)During the march the police seeing such anumber
of peoﬁle ona sa'tu'fday'afferrioon, attacked the demonstration, and arrested three comrades
Roger Loffers of BUFP, Max Hunte, and Mr. Woolford charging them wi th assault and
threatening behaviour . The police so far have revealed their usual habit of nothing but lies
which in the ‘fiﬁal'énalyéis wi 11 show how trumped up charges. are uz?ed against black
people and wo rkers in general in Britian. For further information write to the Alliance

c/o 34Tabley Road, Holloway , Loi_ldon N. 7.

UN-SKILLED LABOUR FORCE TO BE HALTED

LONDON 3 .
msh government has announced that it intends to halt with effect from Jan. 1972

the number of Semi-'skilledand skill wo rkers coming into Britian fron'1 all cou.ntries
" other than those of the E.C.C; Norway,and Denmark. The only exception to this ruling
isto be for wo rkers in the Hotel and Catering industries.

Howe ver most wo rkers from Europe arerefusing to wo rk in such jobs where conditions
are usually a;)pauling and wages very low. On the other hand the jobs that provide better
pay and conditions are being secured for certain people of th e Community.

Now that the Immigration Bill and Industrial Relation Bill arelaw, this is one of the ex-
mbles b withe Eturopean Capitalists intends to use The cheap labour (ma1.nly from
Africa, Asia and the Caribbeanin the Time of Un- employment to crzate tension and dis-

trust amongst the'wo rkers in Britian and other European countries.

S N Ak t the Gov. fig. shows 1 million, but it should be clear
- B ENT (U.K) At presen
UN- EMPLOYM ( Lthat the correct fig. could be 1 million and ahalf.
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¥ OI‘ MURDEBor PrRJIUBRY.

The case of’Nige’Jéian ]’mvic’.‘- Oluwsde is a-case *haL colld rot be forgotten. For it is now almost
i 3 i5 1errois erx By two {dscist policemen who forced him to his

death mbo thﬁ river A ire iV Lieeds.Since Clwwale's death woth policemen left the force. It wa s

onl': sarly Noveniber that the two were brought to *vial,

nepactor Geofirey Ellerker and Sgt. XKen- -
gh ﬁuacncc nlea *151 showi ng that it was an

all out attempt'tfo'
the Jury should ¥3t
body harm,; and:pes
It is well wos ¢ since the brotiives hody wa s found, several black organisations
upand down Britian, der 'fu.ce"‘ that an inyuiyy be held .nto police Brutality and corruption
which surrowided the bic ¢-°1"s death. These mmc.ndu we re made to the Chief Inspector of
Leeds, and The Horte ice. Doth responded wi th the usual answe r that any complaints
_,Lo'ld be madg through tle proper channels.'the Investigation and the bringing in of the

f; the, two fag ciets, ic a result of continuous pressure over a
ie.in Britian.
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3. BIRMINGHAM:~ AZEL

i

OEZAN uA’*‘ION 97 Leonard Road
2 Hudders_inl 52 Grove Street

3. LEICESTER;- LL. CK
4. LONDON:- BLACK PA

, 91 Latirel Road Tel. 25180

! irficrmation Centre) 154 Barnsbury Raad
Cel. 01 278-1791

;....m:nﬂuon Centre & Unity Bookshop)

BLACK PANTHER MOVEME

38 Shulseuare Road S/ E. 24 Vell (L 274-0493
BLACK PE-J,. u_«,s I FOI-:MAT{UN CENTRE & BOOKSHOP - 303 Portobello Road
: E S L WL :
_5‘. NOTTINGHAM :- BLACK PH 09 E'G FREE‘DJM N’()VuM“‘NT 128 Derby Road : Notts
‘6. WOLVERHAMPT N:- AFE0-CARIRBEAN ’“'_‘?.CLE 45 Francis Street, Wolverhampton.-
© 7 *NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL APPEAF. b g ke B 3

Over the past three yaarq Afro-Carib Self Help, Qm‘*nmgham has been wo rkmg in the
commudiity . At present their headquarters is up for sale :and they need fman(:1al help
Any contributions wo uld be appreciated o help this organisation. Send contributions to’
information Centre, 87 Leonzrd Rozd, Handawoy ..., Birmingham, England. SR
information Cenire, 154 Barnsbury Road, ‘“lington, London, N1. England. B 8
Bk Bt e 3R R e ke N RE N 243

T T F et
"News Arr““l" . B !
News of 1ooa1 and commumt y 1rtor9u a::o m(ldf;brlél now., " is needed for this bulletin, .
Should anyone who haz any information they wo. ulu like.to submit send it to one of the follow1 ng
aadresses. .

154 Barng !bury -,\;ad.(ac above; .
8 Srakespeare Road {as.above)

APOLOGY
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LONDON
Tuesdav 7th Deec.'71

Outgide the Old Bailey today, the police force attacked and broke up & peaceful
picket of people who had agssembled to show theit opposiiion io political trials

in this country. They gave no proper reasen, bhut made it evident a series

of provocations that they did not inlend to allow this perfectly legal representation
to proceed. At first the police threatened the people on the picket, they then
illegally towed away the car containing the derasonsirators’ plzeards. The
demonstrators replied with instant organisation by making ne piacards. Finally
a swarm of police were sent in and violence was used to slop the nicket.

In this era of immigration bills and industria! relations vills, there are very
few righis left to the people of Britian. This dayh events a step towards
denying the people of this country their ba:n ¢ right to demonstrate a grievance

@

peacefully on the sirect The seriousness of this assauit cannot be stressed
too strongly. After the Mangrove frial, f.hn trial of Prescoit and Purdie and the

£

treatment they were glvcn by the courts, after the muvrder of brother Qluwale

Ly so called officers of the law, t'hirs vicious attack o concerned and demonstrating
people can only mean that the state sanctions these >:*.u'»\n<" s of police represgion.
It is an issue which concerns not (.}}ﬂj,' those who demensts heir grievances,

but every single citizen of these islands. The state is in the process of retracting
one of the basic fresdoms that the people have forced it to teierate.

EVENTS LEADING TO FOLICE ASSAULT --- AN ATTACK QN THE RIGHT
TO DEMONSTRATE :

9.50 a.m. Twenty people assembl ed outside the Old Bailey to mount a picket
against political trials and the complicity between the police, the
courts and the press . The brothers and sisters. both black and
white. marched around the central tralfic island outside the Old
Bailey holding placards. They did not chant slogans, they did not
in any way sbstruct traffic or pedesirians. thev were only -exercising
the right that this country pretends to give its pec ople. The placards
made no reference to any particular trial, but pointed out the hizs
of the national press against political defendants and a ttempted to
expose the conspiracy of the police and courts against workers and
against black people. The placards generally demanded freedom
for all political prisoners. Judge Edward Clark, condu'c“cing the trial
of the Mangwve 9, now in its ninth week at the Bailey, had clearly
said that the courts and the country respected the right of oppressed
people to peacefully demonstrate their grievances.

There were ten policemen and one inspector hovering around the
picket,

10.45 a.m. Clerk of Court to the Old Bailey, Boyd, stood on the steps of the court
and read all the placards as they came round to ensure that none of
the slogans or demands were 'in contempt of court'.

11.00a.m. The picket took a break for an hour. The people deposited their
placards in a private car belonging to one of them, which was
quite legitimately parked around the corner from the site of the
picket. The police waiched the people stow the nlacards in the car.
Some of the brothers and sisters went into a cafe opposite the Old
Bailey, planning to resume at twelve, in time for the lunch break
of the city public and of the Old Bailey itself.



12 noon

12.05 p.m.

12.35 p.m.

12.40 p.m.

1.00 p.m.

1.05 p.m.

The picket reassembled in a disciplined manner and some brothers
and a sister went to fetch the placards. They found that the car had
been towed away by the police. This was the first step of intimidation
against the pickets , a deliberate attempt by illegal means to stop a
perfectly legal . peaceful protest.

The brothers and sisters were unanimous in their determination not he
stopped by this ploy. Two of them went to fetch the car from the police
pound. A guick collection was made , cards, markers and sello-tape
bought from down the street, and using the benches in the church park
opposite the court, twenty five placards were made.

The picket, with increased numbers and determination, was back on
the street, circulating around the margin of the island. The police,
annoyed that the theft of the placards had only given new life to the
gpirit and organisation of the people, began to gather in force. They
stood in loose, single-file formation around the pavements surrounding
the picket......... waiting.

Two chief Superintendants and one Commander of police appeared

on the scene and demanded, without a reason at that point, that

the brothers and sisters stop the picket and disperse. They obviously
wanted the picket to stop before the Bailey adjourned for lunch. Two
special pat rol vans arrived, and the build-up of a hundred policemen
was attracting quite a lot of attention from the public who read the
placards as they passed. Four unidentified photegraphers were
clicking events. The neople , conscious of their legal rights,
disregarded police threats and continued to march peacefully round
the central traffic island.

The legal representative of the brothers and sisters on the picket was
called to give advice and he talked to the police leaders. The Commander
said that the picket was likely to cause a breach of the peace as a
member of the public might attack the pigiket. Apparentl y the police
did not see it as their duty to prevent members of the public attacking
the brothers and sisters, their only purpose was to use this idiotic
excuse to deny the people their rights.

The legal adviser pointed out to the police that it was illegal o hold

a public meeting outside the Bailey, but not to hold a picket. The

police ignored this and the Commander instructed the officers to

attack the picket and break it up. The police swarmed across the street,
2 or three to each protester , grabbed them , %iciously tore up
placards, snatched coats, necks, shoulders, hair , and poured filthy
racist abuse on men, women and children.

Six policemen fell upBn brother Gregory Galloway (aged 18) and beat
him to the ground. They dragged him away to the police station around
the corner and later charged him with assault on one of the senior
police officers.

The police were instrucied to get all the demonstrators, by force

if necessary, away from the vicinity of the Old Bailey. As the
brothers and sisters left, they were tailed by police. Irritated by the
spirit of the people they had brutalised, the police vent their rage on
the makeshift placards and tore them into little bits, heaping paper
and cardboard on the central island.
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With the incursion of Indian troops inio Bangla Desh a
by the Pakistani air force, the situation between the two couniries has bgcn manipi-
lated into total war

India has already declared a Siate of Emergency, and Pakistan has announced to the
world its air attacks on Agra, Patiala, Amritsar, Pathankot and Srinagar. In spite
of all the peaceful noises made by the Big Powers, the countries are fighting each
other with American and Rugsian planes, tanks, alms and ammunition.

Yayha Khan's military regime and its 1S supporters have no ontion but to resort to
a desperate war to prevent India from supporting and centrolling the 'freedom fight!
of Bangla Desh. The government of Indira Gandhi is using Indian troops to cover
and control the Mukhti Bahini of Bangla Desh, guerillas whom they train and equip
with light weapons. Both governments arve using the war to prevent.the disruption
of the capitalist interests they represent.

.The demand for freedom by the people of Bangla Desh is seen as a danger within
India and within West Pakistan. Emergency legislation within India and Pakistan
is being used to imprison and eliminate the peoples opposition to the bourgeois
regnnes of both countries.
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 NATIONAL CAMPAIGN AGAINST POLITICAL REPRESSION IN TRINIDAD &
. TOBAGO. 13 BEING ORGANISED BY THE BLACK PEOPLES NATIONAL |
ACTION COLLECTIVE. FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT : .
BLACK PEOPLES INFORMATION CENTRE,
154 BARNSBURY ROAD,
LONDON, N.1.
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INDUSTRIAL NEWS

< 2,300 Workers to be laid off by British Rail ;

Rail union leaders, boycotted a meeting wi th the British Railwa ys Board, because
Mr John Peyton, Minister for Tranmport Industries, has said , that he sees no point
in meeting the union, while they are still negotiating wi th the employers. -

The minister wa nts to cvade responsikility for the impending 2300 redundancies
proposed by British Rail, wi th another 2700 to follow in the next few ‘years. One of
the union negotiators said "if the government is not prepared to meet , it shows that
its claim to ke concerned about unemployment is & sham.

Industrial Relations Act e R : feoil L
Parts of the Industrial Relationg Act, Loy been implemented this we ek,-wi t h the
setting up of the Mational .Tndusﬁri:al Relations Court, to deal wi th those parts of the
Act, covering aency {closed shops) and bargining rights of unions. Only those unions
which are registered wi th the registfé.r of trade unions have bargaining rights, all
unions are automatically registex'ed‘ unless they deregister. Many unions, in protest
against the Act have voted to deregifiter, and not use the Industrial Court.
Howe ver, opportunists wi. 11 use the Industeial ‘Court, to gain the right to represent
wo rkers, A new organisation.whi ch intends to do yust that, is the Association of
Professional Scientists and Technologists, who hope to recruit 20, 000 members,
particulatly from unions like the Associatioti of Scientific Technical and Managerial
Staffs, which is committed to-fight the Industrial Relations Act.

io!

More Unemployment c . [
In fighting to save 'white collar’ jobs in industry, union leaders have agresd wi th
management, to a foar day week and a ban on overtime. In the past yezr there has [
been a 15% cut in the numbeéx of white collar jobs in-the engineering industry.

However, wi th the change in qualifications for unemployment benefit, wo rkers 1.
who are subject to such agreements, get sqeexed both wa ys: a person has to wo rk V-
nine we eks at four days before he could qualify for the benefit lost by not wo rking
five days. With overtime ban this is a heavy financial penalty. i -

3 * * £ * : . S

Immigraatn.in Prigon 1
Home Office statistics on prisons, published this we ek, show that the numbee of
people imprisoned under the Commonwe aith Immigration Act, rose from 141 men and
18 women in 19639, to more than twi ce the number in 1970, 308 men and 36 women -
althougn the total number of immigrants entering Britain dropped, beteen 1969 and 1970.
The government and police have used previous immigration acts to imprison black ¢ dn

people wi thout trial and wi t hout access to legal advice or visits from relatives. ne
* * £ £ * o TRy : 2 =

Capitalist Economies in Crigis PO iy g

European, Japanese and American finance ministera met in Rome this we ek for
talks on the crisis in the international monetary system. The US, playing the role
of "bully boy", has demans:il that other countries revalue their currency, before
America lifts its 10% surcharge on goods coming in the US. :

“The lesser capitalist countries see it as a disadvantage to themselves to revalue

their curreney, a step which wi 11 make their exports dearer and less competitive.
The finance ministers agree, that a deal is necessary to stave off a period of recession.
Already in Britain, one million wo rkers are unemployed. In the US, steel production
is less than 50% its normal capacity, wi th 95000 steel wo rkers laid off. Many American
farmers are threatening to burn their surplus produce, rather than sell at rock bottom ite
prices. * ok ok kk %

Racism at Royal Ordinance Factory Blackburn
Blackburn Ordinance Factory has bemn in exiatence for 32 years and employs over 3000 -
wo rkers , in a town with a black population of 6000. Howe ver not one black.person
has ever been employed at this factory, although black people have been resident in
East Lancashire for over 50 years. ;
The Ministry of Defence refuse black applicants who apply for employment at thig
factory on the grounds that black people are a security risk. This ministry has no
objection to black soldiers serving Britigh imperialism in Northern Iredand and elsewhe re.
Black people all over Britain should write to the Royal Ordinance Factory and demand
that black people be allowed to work atthe ROF. Letters of protest may be sent to:

The Factory Directoz,, Mr E.J. Gammons
Lower Darwen, Blackburn , Lanes.




®  TRINIDAD & TOBAGO CONT. ;
decigion to strike, thereby foiling the peoples’ movelnent,-__-b_le is
executive members who have not yet come out into the open. .. - % , e
Youths Retaliate : ek o Wl 3 Tl A
Three policemen were geriously injured wh en 2 group of youth opened firon them wi th gsub-
machine guns last week. There was 2 series of raidg after that, and a cache of arms and

E explosives we re found in West Port-of Spain. Two men have been arrested, one an ex-soldier.

being supported by other
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| BRITAIN '
THE FIGHT AGAINST FEUDALISM IN BRITAIN CONT INUES
The Queens' Payrise 106% - Miners Offered 1% s ,
Without significant opposition the parliamentary gelect committee gave the Queen one million’
pounds per year - a pay increase of 106%. It ig said that the Queen never stops wo_;*king and
never has a real holiday. Most of the labour involves spending huge sums Qf money. Last
year her expenditure wa s: Garden parties - £94,402 , Official presents - £9, 017 ,
Cars (upkeep and purchase) -£11,912°, Drinks -£12,000 , Tood -£44,000 , Housechold
‘Repairs' -£17,677 , Horses (purchase and upkeep) -£1I,5¢8 The Royal Yacht - 839, 000.
To obtain a payrise; the miners who se yearly income is iar legs thah ihe Queen's drinks bill,
wi 11 have to go on’ gtrike in January'so as to avoid causing their families hardship over X'mas

xk  ckx kX

JAKE PRESCOTT SENTENCED TO FIFTEEN YEARS FOR 'CONSPIRACY'
It wa s in a gpiteful mood that Judge Melford Stevenson sentenced Jake Prescott to 15 years
for 'conspiracy to.cause bomb explosions' after the jury had acyuitted Prescott of actually

e B S

causing explosions at the home of Robert Carr, Minister of Employment. The judge clearly
N disagreed wi t h the verdict of the jury, but said.that he wo uld loyally abide by their decision,
whereupon he refused to allow bail to Ian Purdic(charged and acquitted jointly wit h Prescott),
who is also charged - wi th others who are themselves free ca bail - for pocsessing stolen ...
cheque books. Both defendants had been in prison for just under a year wi t hout trial.
Prescott's sentence contrasts significantly wi t h the 2 to 3 year gentence two fascists recei-
ved {67 fre bombing & - Wast Tdian garty) wat.ch cutised permanant injury to at least ten
black people.

DEMONSTRATION CALLED TO PROTEST AGAINST RAILROADING OF POLITICAL PRISONE
Assemble St. Pauls Tube Station - Monday 6th. December - 6 p.m. i
March to Appeal Court in the Strand via the-Old Bailey and Flect St. ;
FREE JAKE & IAN - FREE ALL POLITICAL PRISONERS!

THE INFORMATION CENTRES LISTED BELOW PROVIDE POINTS OF CONTACT IN OUR
COMMUNITIES FOR EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION, ADVISE , DISCUSSION AND COLLEC-
TIVE ACTIVITY: . o1 Sl ke : : b
1. BIRMINGHAM:-. . AFRO-CARIBBEAN SELF-HELP ORGANISATION, 97 Leonard Road,
Birmingham. Tel. 621 554-274 i
2. HUDDERSFIELD:- BLACK PEOPLES LIBERATION PARTY, 51 Grove Strect,
Huddersfield. Tel. 30852
3. LEICESTER:- BLATK PEOPLES LIBERATION PARTY, 91 Laurci Road, Tel. 25180 |
4. LONDON:- BLACK PANTHER MOVEMENT, (Contral Information Centre)
154 Barnsbury Road, N.1. Tel. 278-1791 : i
BLACK PANTHER MOVEMENT (infcrmation Centre & Unity Bookshop);
: 38 Shekespearec Road, S.E.24 Tel. 274-0298 : i-
‘ . NOTTINGHAM:-  BLACK PEOPLES FREEDOM MOVEMENT, 128 Dorby Road, Notts. !
! 6. WOLVERHAMPTON: AFRO-CARIBBEAN CIRCLE, 16 Francis Strect, Wolverhampton. i
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MANGROVE 9'— PICKET OLD BAILEY !
THE RAILROADING OF THE MANGROVE NINE IS IN ITS FINATL STAGES

AND THE VERDICT “WILL .PROBABLY BE GIVEN NEXT WEEK

THERE WILL BE A PICKET OUTSIDE-THE OLD BA
FROM TUESDAY, 7th DEC. FROM 10 a.m. R

* SHOW'SOLIDARITY WITH THE MANGROVE 9 / '

V FORWARD To ORGANIsgp KESISTANCE -




INTERNATIONA L, NEWS

CEYLON
14, 000 Political Prisoners Still Held - 9,000T0 Be Tried

In Ceylon toﬁay at least 14, 000 political prisoners are still under detention. These brothers
a13d msters. ave been held since April and May this year wi t hout any access to lawyers,
wi thout being charged and wi th no indication of a date of releage. To this day there has

been no inquiry into the wi dely reported atrocities committed by the police and gections
of the armed forces againgt the people.

Yiutbh Main Victims

These arrests we re the result of an upriging that took place on April 4/5 1971, when the
youth revolted against the repressive policies of Bandarnaike's Govt. On December Ist.

the Minister of Home Affaires announced that of the total 14, 000 prisoners 5, 000 are to be
brought to trial on charges ranging from treason to possessing firearms and that the situation
in Ceylon is now "returning to normali. He gave no indication of what wa s to happen to

the other 9, 000. These brothers and sisters are mainly young wo rkers, peasants and -
students who we re rounded up during the uprising. Many have been tortured and an endless
number murdered. The remaining have been dumped in makeshift concentration camps.
There can bz no doubt that the situation is far from returning to 'normal’.

INDTA
Massacre In West Bengal Jail

At Alinore Central Jail iast week six brothers alleged to be Naxalites we re brutally beaten
to death by prison guards. After 2 smail incident involving a prisoner and a guard a scuffle
broke out. The guards took it upon themselves to charge the prisoners wi t h truncheons

in order to 'dicperce’ them. The result was sis prisoners DEAD and 172 feNously injured.
Similar Attacks In The Past

Since December 1870,47 political prigoners have been murdered inside jails all over Bengal.
The B~ o kot niled o wavaztigaie these killmgs and no one has ever been charged. Follow-
ing this last outrage Jyoti Dasu of the Communist Party of India (Marxist), has demanded

an immedciate public inguiry o '"agcertain the cause of the attack and massacre of the prison-
ers". The only comment from a Govt. official wa g that the'jails are over crowded and

thig often leads to frayed tempers both among the prisoners and the wa rdens. This casual
reaction ig typical of Indira Gandhi's government.

TRINIDAD & TOBAGO

SEDITION ACT NOW LAW

With the Sedition Amendment Act now law, the reactionary Williams government is planning
to introduce its next picce of repressive legislation. Under the Summary Offences Amendment
Bill, which ig now hefore Parliament, all public meetings and demonstrations in Trinidad

& Tobago wi 11 be banned: unless police permission is granted. With the present state of

the country, the police wi 1l never allow such meetings to ever take place again. The

penalty for breaking this law wi 11 be $1000 or 1 year in jail. Another clause in this Bill

wi Il ban all non-Trinidadians from speaking to public meetings of any kind unless they

have the permission of the Minister of National Sccurity. Any non-national who breaks

this law wi 11 be subject to a fine of $2500 or 2 years in jail.
%k *3% :

0il Workers Sold Out

With Brother George Weekes now i n jail, all the traiters in the Union Executive of the
Q.W.T.U, are now coming out and identifying themselves for the first time before the
public. The Acting President of the Union, Verne Edwa rds, who has for long been suspected
of being the gevernment spy on the central executive, has now openly declared his stand.
Lagst week, he condemned people who try to introduce ''"politics" into O.W,T.U. He attacked
Weekes and sai: that the business of the union is to look after oil wo rkers alone and to hell
wi th everybody else, including other wo rkers. He also announced that from now on there
wi 1I be 2 specially appointed committee to ''supervise!’ the contents of the VANGUARD

news paper, voice of the union, and to make sure that no politics get into the paper. He hasg
also given instructions to the VANGUARD publishing company that NEW BEGINNING is not to
be published by them as long as it continues in its present revolutionary vein. This traitor
to the wo rking clasa is now openly acting in the interests of the government and the oil
corporations. Last year, he was the man who singlehandedly prevented the Union from
going on strike in support of the Army mutiny. If the O, W.T.U. had gone on strike, the
whole wo rking clagg vio uld have followe d. This man sabotaged the General Council's




“The trial of the Mangrove Ni seven brothers and two sis
QOct. '71 at the Central Criminai Court, Cld Bailey, L "»(lou
with riot and aftfiray 10 of them with assault. Their
demonstration against police brutality and the continuow
Mangrove restaurant in Motting Hill. Two of the

T

opened on Tue. 5th
he nine are charged
2 arises out of a
-assment of the
z2dford Howe and
Althea Jones Lecointe are vepresenting themselve ase was post poned
from Monday to Tuesday on vr v "‘mr- notice by t so that hmg\ Edward
“Clay & , whom the court wanted ., would be avatiable to conduet-it.
The Black People's:Information Cenice . res cme importance and
significance of this trial for black people in Brilai for the coramon man in
ocneral, are going to put out this weekly report of s in the courtroom.

and &

Tuesday 5th October

‘The day opened with the counsel for the defence objecting { : faci-thati relatives
of the defendants were not allowed into the well of the court. The pelntives of the
defendants had been given access to the pablic galleyy oniv , and i teo by a
sysiem of tickets which the Clerk of the court had atiempied.to set up. Counsel .
argued that it was quite vormal for reiatives he defend ) hie allowed into.the
well of the court and asked Tor a reason for this unusual p > which the Clerk
had adepted. The judge refused to give a reason and said that this was aplo the
discretion of the Clerk. I'viends of the defendan
“court for entrance to tho public g
the officials in charge who had been instructed to ke
The defendaits then made an &
aga nst them as.it had.been thrown out at the prefiminary proceedings in the magiste
atds court '"oz' lack of evidence. Judge Clark ., refusing the application said that he

had nop-wiesto do this . The defence counsel objecied to this stand by the
court. Radford Howsa, getting fo his foe in the doecic said ¢ Lowd, I' have no
precedents to state, but I have a sense of justice. 1 detect 4 "tain vagueness in

the way the prosecution ‘has bmusxhr bzwk this charge of as a famous
philosopher said, '"vagueness in certain maiters conceals treachery '. Many black
peaple and ordm’us pnoplc ‘vo&lM wounder, he said. how he couid be tried twice for the
same offence having had the charge thrown cut once before As & common man ho
‘felt this was a breach of natural justice.

A hush fell over the court as the charges were read and !.]1\, defendants got to their
feet-one by one and intoned '"'not guilty'. :

Tan MacDonald, young, bespectacled, defence counsel for Barbava Peese, then made
an application on behalf of the Mangrove Nine for a trial by black jurers. ife said
that his request fm: an all black jury was based on the common law of England which
had existed for ovef 700 years."What I am asking for is simply something I am entitled
to under the law, T am not asking for sn extension of the law or for the court to make
any special concessions, "he said. In support of his claim Mr. Mac Donald quoted

who had been queuing outside the

argum ent with

iilovwed

Uf'l“’ 3 wWoer

plication to the court to remove the charge of riot

trongly

a series of historical examples beginning w h the authority of the Magna.Carta 1215A. 1.

which clearly said that a man should be tried by bis peers or equals. As this
particular provision of the charter had not been repealed it was stiil ihe accepted law
of the land.

gupport this important applicition, he went on to quoting precedonts of trials with



juries of all Jews or all Welshmen or all merchant juries . The judge interrupted

Mr. Mac Donald by asking him for "the real substahce of the submission . ,
Mn.MhcDonald replied that he was astounded that the judge could prejudge the issue.
JUDGE: You can object'as much as you like, at the moment we are at 1215,7 want you

to get up to contemporary, modern times.

UlacDonald: There are also precedents for the trial of aliens by their equals.

JUDGE: Would it matter in this case if the jurors were Nigerians, Viest Indians, ndians
or any other nationality as long as they were black ?

MacDonald: No, it would not. "

Wednesday 6th October

On this second day of the trial iir. Macddonald was allowed to coatinue his application
for ahﬂadg jury. Ther.judge, whose attitude was hostile to the application from the
start said that the only relevant precedent for counsel's application was the case of
Regina vs Broderick in which , three years ago, the chairman allowedqne -black juror.
MacDonald said that that was i: irrelevant as no appl ication had been made at that time
for an all black jury. The judge was given a submission to procure the right to
cross-examine jurors about their attitude to race to establish if they were racially
prejudiced.

Going on with the application, Mr. MacDonald quoted two cases where specialised
juries had been allowed. The first involved the Sexual Discrimination 1. emoval Act of
1919 which included a provision for an all male or all female jury. A woman who broke
up the Miss World competition on political grounds might request a jury of women.

Mr MacDonald satisfied judge Clark's thirst for the contemporary by quoting a-case qut.
of the morning papers in which a Cockney, being tried by a midily class jury in *ewes, .
Essex, pleaded that the people in Essex were as green as-cabba gas and he wanted , for
this excellent reason, to be tried by a Cockney Jurg in London.

""An all black jury is necessary for the present time because you cannot guarantee, in a
society in which racial prejudice is rife, that a jury will not have on it persons who -start
off with prejudiltec against the defendats because they-arc-black."! said the counsel for tl
defence in summing up.

The judge rejected the submission and application for-a-black jury . 7 need give you
no reason for my refusal’’ , he said.

Counsel for the defence then said that jurors should be.chosen fram areas of. : ~ondon in...
which large numbers of black people lived.

Judge: There is a danger even before the jury is sworn that this will deteriorate into a
black versus. white contest. :

Thursday 7th October

Mr Mac Donald formd);- repeated his challenge to the entire panel of jurors, on the

g rounds that there were not even twelve black people on tfredist of a hundred and fifty. °
The judge again overruled the @bjection: and the selection of the jury began. - he defence
objected to several white people . One black brother dismissed himself on the-grounds. th:
he was a student and had to take cxams in April and-coudn't,afford the six weeks that the
trial would take. The second black juror was challenged-by the-prosecution as srsmn as -
he began taking the oath in a strong grass roots accent. The defenee.counscl 8aid that -
he could not be challeng ed once he had started taking the oath, The judgersaid he
hadn't heard him begin. The jury, after soveral objections consiats finally of 8wh1te.m01
2white women and 2 black men.

The prosecutor also challenged one young wh1tc juror..

1Miss Althea ~Jones Leconte who is conducting her own defence made an application that
she should have afriend sitting next to her and assisting her during the trial. This kind o:
application was made in several other cases including most recently the 2T trial.Zut
Judge Clarke said he had never heard of this done in.criminal cases . The cury were the
dismissed with remarks from the Judge that he did'nt see why they should waste any mo:

time.
He finally said he'd give a decision the next morning. .




